
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

**** SMALL COURTROOM, COURTHOUSE 2ND FLOOR **** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 

October 2, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 

*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES, VICE-CHAIR     

DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 4 – ASHER GRAY     

DISTRICT 5 - STEVEN LEDFORD     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 2 

         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 

         

 V.      Consent Agenda –  

1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• July 18, 2023 – Called Meeting Minutes 

 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     68687-68847 

 

VI.   Public Hearings with Business Action 

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 

ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 

Commissioners.  Following the public hearing. The Board of Commissioners will act on each item 

presented below.  

 

 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 

(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or other events by the 

Commissioners.  

 

Presentation #1: Proclamation – Georgia Military Veterans Hall of Fame Day 

            

Presentation #2: Employee Recognition 

 

 

 

 

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 

for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  

be courteous of the 3-minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



XIII. Executive Session 

 

 

IX. County Commissioner Items & Updates 

 

X.   Regular Agenda  

Business Items Continued: 

1. Emergency Management Agency Director Appointment 

2. Sheriff’s Office/Jail Addition & Renovation Construction Project Change Orders 

3. “Request for Contract” Senior Center Vaccine Initiative 

4. Consideration for Extending the Moratorium on Short Term Rentals  

5. Consideration of Extending the Moratorium on the Acceptance of Rezoning Requests 

6. Consideration of Adopting a Moratorium on the Acceptance of Subdivision Preliminary Plats 

7. FY 2023 Final Year End Budget Amendments 

8. Community Development Block Grant Projects 

9. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  

§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 

and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 

in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  

 

XIV. Adjournment  

 

 

 

 

  



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:  October 2, 2023 

 

Subject:  Approval of Minutes 

 

Summary: 

 

 

Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 

• July 18, 2023 – Called Meeting Minutes 

 

Background: 

 

 

Cost:  $0 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve minutes for:  

 

• July 18, 2023 – Called Meeting Minutes 



   Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

July 18, 2023 

Called Meeting Minutes 

7:00 P.M. 

 

Chairman Jernigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Commissioners Present: Don Jernigan, Chairman; Sheila Jones, Vice-Chairman; Bruce Henry; and Steven 

Ledford.  

 

Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sharon Robinson, Administrative Services Director 

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation:  Commissioner Bruce Henry, District 2. 

 

Agenda Approval:  Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Commissioner 

Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Consent Agenda: None 

Public Hearings:  None 

 

Presentations/Delegations- None 
 

Citizens Comments:  

 

County Commissioner’s Items: 

Commissioner Ledford- None 

Commissioner Jernigan- None 

Commissioner Jones- None 

Chairman Henry- None 

 

Business Items: 

Item 1: Adopt Jasper County Board of Education Millage Rate: Commissioner Henry motioned to adopt 

Resolution #2023.07.18 authorizing the Jasper County Tax Commissioner to levy a Jasper County Board of 

Education Millage Rate of 14.010 for the 2023 Tax Billing. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, 

passed unanimously.  

  

County Attorney Items: None  

 

County Manager Update: None 

 

Executive Session: 

 

Adjourn: Commissioner Jones motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:02 p.m. Commissioner Ledford seconded 

the motion, passed unanimously. 

 

___________________________ 

Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon Robinson, Clerk          

 



 

Consent Agenda – Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date: October 2, 2023 

 

Subject:  Approval of Check Register 

 

 

Summary: 

 

A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 

process the checks. 

 

Background: 

 

Cost:  $0 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve processing of check #’s 68687-68847 

  



Presentation #1 

 

Department: Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   October 2, 2023 

 

 

Subject: Proclamation – Georgia Military Veterans Hall of Fame Day 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

The Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of Fame is asking the Jasper County Board of Commissioners to proclaim 

Saturday, November 4, 2023 as the Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of Fame, Inc. Day. 

 

 

Background:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Proclaim Saturday, November 4, 2023 as the Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of Fame, Inc. Day. 

 

  















Presentation # 2  
 
 
Employee Recognition 
 
Sharon Robinson 
 



Business Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Emergency Management Agency 

 

Date:   October 2, 2023 

 

 

Subject: Emergency Management Agency Director Appointment 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Kimberly LeCroy has been hired by the Joint 911 Authority Board for the position of Director of the 911 

Center. Ms. LeCroy begins her employment as 911 Center Director on October 9, 2023. 

 

Ms. LeCroy received EMA experience while working for Butts County Emergemcy Communication and is 

willing to serve as Jasper County’s EMA Director. 

 

 

Background:  

 

Historically, the 911 Center Director also serves as the Jasper County EMA Director. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

Annual Salary of $5000 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Motion to recommend Kimberly LeCroy be appointed by the Georgia Emergency Management Agency to serve 

as Jasper County’s EMA Director. 

  















Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Sheriff’s Office/Detention Center 
 
Date:   October 2, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Sheriff’s Office/Jail Addition & Renovation Construction Project Change Orders 
   
 
 
Summary:  
 
Barnsley Construction will present the following change orders for BOC review/approval: 
 
PCO #07 $23,007.00 
PCO #12 $16,500.00  
PCO #13 $15,482.00 
PCO #15 $17,502.00 
PCO # 3 ($9,777.00) 
PCO # 6 $63,579.00 
PCO # 8 $26,510.00 
Total  $152,803.00 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
GMP    $9,046,952 
Approved CO # 01  $     70,382 
Accepted Contract  $9,117,334 
Pending Change Orders $   152,803 
Potential Contract  $9,270,137 
 
Barnsley Accepted Contract $9,117,334 
Pending Change Orders $   152,803 
Design    $   650,000 
Owner FF&E   $   123,000 
Owner Material Testing $     30,000 
Total    $10,073,137  
 
Cost:   
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Board Discretion 











































































































































Business Item 3: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Jasper County Senior Center 

 

Date:   September 28, 2023 

 

Subject:  “Request for Contract” Senior Center Vaccine Initiative 

 

Summary:  

On August 8th, 2023 the BOC tabled the contractual agreement, to clarify possible outcome if the contractual 

agreement was not fulfilled. On September 11th, the BOC approved to sign the agreement with the 

understanding that the language of the contract would be changed. After having discussion with the National 

Council On Aging, it has been determined that the agreement cannot be changed. At the direction of the BOC 

and to The Jasper County Senior Center will excute this contractual agreement with the understanding that the 

funds be put on hold, until the all of the contractual requirements are fully met.  

 

Background:  

The Jasper County Senior Center is requesting permission to proceed with this health initiative to serve 

the individuals of Jasper and the surrounding counties. Jasper County Senior Center endeavors to partner with 

local health departments to bring this endeavor into full fruition. For $10,000, this project requires that we assist 

100 seniors or individuals with receiving a COVID or Flu Vaccine by April of 2024.The 

 

 

Cost:     $0.00                         

Total Contractal Amount: $10,000 

 

Recommended Motion:  

  



nco^
national council on aging

Covid“19 and Influenza Vaccine Uptake Initiative:

Agreement for Contracted Services

'I'his Agreement for Contracted Services (including all Exhibits and Schedules, the “Agreement”), is entered
into by and between the National Council On Aging, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as NCOA) and Jasper

County Senior Center, (hereinafter referred to as CON TRACTOR). CONTRACTOR agrees to operate
the project in accord with all clauses and exhibits included in this CONTRACT.

rUNDER CONTRACrOR

Name of Entity: Jasper County Senior CenterNational Council on Aging
251 18"'Street, South
Suite 500

Arlington, VA 22202

■Address:

Street address 1: 26 Mack'nilnian Drive

Street address 2:

City, State ZIP: Montieello, GA 31064

Period of performance: 07/11/2023 to 04/30/2024CONTRACT PERIOD

$10,000Contract Amount

NCOA’s

Federal

Source:

Federal Award #:

90ADCI0008-01-05

Federal Award ID #:

90ADC10008

Agency Name:

Department of Health and Human Services, Administration For

Community Living (ACL)

One payment - $ 10,000 upon execution of this contractOne-time navnicntMethod of

Payment

Approved for CONTRACTOR by:Approved for NCOA by:

NAME: Josh Hodges NAME:

TITLE: Chief Customer Ofifcer TITLE:

SIGNA TURE SIGNA JURE

DATE DA TE

NCOA Consulting Services Agreement
(v. May 2022)

Page 1 of 9



RECITALS

WllERHAS, NCOA is a non-profit organization which educates, provides research and advocates

for public policy issues to improve the lives of older Americans and wishes to engage Contractor to make
available experts to perform certain services on behalf ofNCOA as described in this Agreement;

WHEREAS, Contractor has expertise and experience in providing the services described in the

attached Statemenl(s) of Work and has agreed to provide services to NCOA in its area of expertise.

Whhri-A.S, NCOA desires to retain the services of Contractor and Contractor desires to render

such services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Now THERFiFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of mutual promises and covenants set forth hereunder, the

parties agree as follows:

Provision of Services by Contractor.

Services. Contractor agrees to perform for NCOA the services described in the Statement(s) of Work
attached hereto and made a part hereof referencing this Agreement (each, a “SOW”) as may be mutually
agreed upon and signed by both parties. Such services, including without limitation, any deliverables and
work product to be furnished by Contractor, are hereinafter referred to as the “Services.” SOW Number
1 is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

F-ces and Expenses. As compensation for the Services, NCOA will pay to Contractor the fees set forth
in the applicable SOW. Payment terms will be as described in each SOW.

Taxes. Contractor will pay any and all Federal, state, local or foreign sales, excise, service, use, value-
added and other governmental taxes or assessments, however designated, with respect to the Services,
payments hereunder or otherwise arising out of this Agreement (collectively, “Taxes). NCOA will not
withhold any funds from Contractor for Taxes or other governmental purposes.

Contractor Responsibilities.

i. Contractor shall perform Services diligently and in a workmanlike manner in accordance
with industry standards and will use its reasonable commercial efforts to meet the need.s and requirements
ofNCOA.

Contractor shall manage the work of all staff retained on its behalf to perform Services
and shall provide all equipment, materials and supplies to its personnel assigned to perform Services
hereunder at its expense.

11.

Contractor shall perform the Services in conformance with all applicable laws, rules, and
regulations relating to performance of the Services and all requirements set forth in any SOW.

Sections 2 and 3 intentionally omitted
4, Examinations

4.01 Audits. Inspections and Inquiries. In the event Contractor is notified of any regulatory inspection or

other audit or inquiry that relates to any Services provided under this Agreement, Contractor shall: (a)
promptly notify NCOA of any such inspection or inquiry; (b) forward to NCOA copies of any
correspondence from the regulatory agency relating to any such inspection or inquiry; aitd (c) seek the
applicable Client’s consent before referring to any Client in any correspondence responding or relating to

any such regulatory inspection or inquiry (or related regulatory correspondence).

m.

NCOA Consulting Services Agreement
(v. August 2022)

Page 2 of 9



Term and Termination

5.01 Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue until April 30, 2024,
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5 (the ‘'Initial Term”).

5.02 Termination for Material Breach. In the event either party defaults in any material obligation in this

Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall give written notice of such default. If the party in default has
not cured the default within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice, the non-defaulting party may
terminate this Agreement by delivering notice thereof to the defaulting parly.

5.03 Termination for Insolvenev. In the event that either party becomes insolvent (i.e., becomes unable
to pay its debts in the ordinary course of business as they come due) or makes assignment of this
Agreement for the benefit of creditors, the other party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon
written notice.

5.04 Termination for Convenience. Unless otherwise provided in a SOW, NCOA may terminate this

Agreement or any SOW upon at least thirty (30) days advance written notice to Contractor.

5.05 Effect of Termination. Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall automatically
terminate all services provided, and licenses granted, by the parties hereunder. NCOA shall be
liable for any fees and expenses incurred by Contractor prior to the effective date of termination.

Confidentiality.

6.01 Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement, each party may receive or have
access to information that is confidential or proprietary to the other pai1y (the “Confidential
Information”). Confidential Information shall mean sensitive or proprietary materials and information, in
whatever form, written, oral or otherwise, and shall include, but shall not be limited to (i) the distinctive

methods or procedures which a parly utilizes in the conduct of its business, (ii) each party’s existing or

future business models, relationships, plans, products and services marketed or planned to be marketed by
such party; (iii) information relating to a party’s general business operations, including but not limited to,

sales, costs, profits, organizations, promotions, leads, ideas and methods and pricing structures; (iv) the
terms and pricing under this Agreement, (v) a party’s business processes and strategies, (vi) all Client
information and data, including personally-identifiable information provided by Clients and (vii) all
information clearly identified by a party as confidential. Confidential information shall not include
information that, as evidenced by documentary evidence; (a) is or becomes generally available to the
public through no act or omission of the receiving party or its personnel; (b) was in the receiving party’s
lawful possession prior to the disclosure and had not been obtained by the disclosing party either directly
or indirectly from the disclosing party or from a third party who such party knows or should know is
under an obligation of confidentiality with NCOA; (c) is lawfully disclosed to the receiving party by a
third party without restriction on disclosure; (d) is independently developed by the receiving parly without
reference to the Confidential Information; or (e) is obligated to be disclosed by court order or government

requirement. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Client” of NCOA means any business partner (including
any corporation, partnership, governmental organization, joint venture, health plan, educational
institution, not-for-profit organization, community senior center and other party with whom NCOA
engages in any business transaction), business associate and any party that provides information to
NCOA, including members of the general public.

6.02 Nondisclosure. Each party agrees to hold the other party’s Confidential Information in confidence
during the term of this Agreement and at all times after termination or expiration of this Agreement. The
parties agree not to make the Confidential Information available in any form to any third party (provided
that Contractor may make the terms and pricing of this Agreement available to auditors and legal counsel
who are bound by confidentiality obligations with respect thereto) or to use the Confidential Information
for any purpose other than the implementation of this Agreement. Each party agrees to take all

NCOA Consulting Services Agreonent
(v. August 2022)

Page 3 of 9



reasonable steps to ensure that Confidential Information is not disclosed or distributed by any person or
entity in violation of the terms of this Agreement. Within thirty (30) days after any request made from

time to time by the disclosing party, the receiving party shall return to the disclosing party, or at the
disclosing party’s direction destroy, and certify to the disclosing party in writing that the original and all
copies, in whole or in part, of the Confidential Information have been returned to the disclosing party or
destroyed, if a party is compelled to disclose any of the Confidential Information by court order or
government regulation, it will disclose only that portion thereof which it is compelled to disclose and
shall reasonably cooperate with the disclosing party’s efforts to obtain an order or other reliable assurance
that confidential treatment will be accorded to the Confidential Information so disclosed. Each party shall
promptly inform the other party in the event such party learns of any disclosure of ConUdential
Information.

Warranties.

7.01 Services Warranties. Contractor warrants that (i) the Services shall be performed by qualified
personnel in a good and workmanlike manner with due care and diligence consistent with industry

standards; (ii) Contractor and its representatives shall perform the Services in conformance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to performance of the Services.

7.03 Debarment. Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that all times during the Term,
Contractor and each of Conti'actor’s officers and directors, employees and other personnel assigned to

perform Services: (i) arc not presently listed on the governmentwdde exclusions in the System for
Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the 0MB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement
Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235),
"Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or
otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory
authority other than Executive Order 12549; (ii) have not, within a three (3) year period preceding the
effective date of this Agreement, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it or them
for commission of fraud or a criminal offense; (Hi) are not presently indicted for or oiherwHse

criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any
of the foregoing offenses; and (iv) have not within the preceding three (3) years had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

7.04 Mutual Warranties. Each party represents and warrants to the other party that: (i) such
party has sufficient rights, power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and
perform its obligations hereunder and has taken all necessary corporate and other action to
authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement; (ii) execution and performance of each
party’s respective obligations under this Agreement will not result in a breach of or conflict with
any other agreement to which such party is a party or is bound; (iii) this Agreement is and shall
be the legal, valid, and binding obligation of such party and shall be enforceable in accordance
with its terms; and (iv) such party will comply with all applicable privacy or data protection
statutes, rules or regulations governing the respective activities of that party.

7.05 Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY STATED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO MAXIMUM

THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, THE PARTIES MAKE NO, AND

HEREBY DISCLAIM ANY, REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR GUARANTY, WHETHER

EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTI lERWISE, WITH RliSPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT,

INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION. ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY: (l)OF
MERCHAN'fABILITY OR SATlSFACfORY QUALITY; (2) OF FITNESS FORA PARTICULAR
PURPOSE; OR (3) ARISING FROM COURSE OF PERFORMANCE,COURSE OF DEALING, OR
USAGE OF TRADE.

NCOA Consulling Services Agreement
(v. August 2022)

Page 4 of 9



7.07 As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the non-Federal entity should, to the greatest
extent practicable under a Federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of
goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum,
steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section must be included in all
subawards including all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award.

For purposes of this section:

“Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from
the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.

“Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-
ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe;
aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.

7.08 This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights and
remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at 41 U.S.C.
4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 1 12-239)
and Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) 3.908.

The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce, of
employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section FAR 3.908.

Disclaimers of Damage and Limitations of Liability.

8.01 Disclaimer of Certain Damages: IN NO EVENT SHALL ElTl IHR PARTY OR ITS OFFICERS,

DIRECTORS, EMPL.OYEES, SUPPLIERS, LICENSORS, SERVICE PROVIDERS AND

CONSULTANTS BE L1AB1..E FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY,

SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED, REGARDLESS OF THE
THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, OR O THERWISE, EVEN IF 31 IE
COMPANY HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILFFY, OR HAS

CONSTRUCTIVE KNOWl.EDGE, OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWi l'IlSTANDING ANY

FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. NO THIRD PARTY SHALL BE DEEMED A THIRD PARTY

BENEFICIARY OF THIS AGREEMENT.

8.02 Exclusions. The limitations and disclaimers in this Section 8 shall not apply with respect to: (a)

either party's liability for infringement of the other party’s or a third party’s proprietary rights; (b) either
party’s liability for damage to or destruction of tangible personal property or real property; (c) either
party’s liability for breach of its privacy and confidentiality obligations.

Indemnification.

9.01 Indemnification. Each Party will, indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, and its respective
officers, directors, employees and representatives from and against any costs, claims, demand, lawsuits,
actions, causes of action, liabilities, penalties, losses and expenses (including reasonable counsel fees)
arising from (i) any breach of this Agreement (including the terms and conditions of any Exhibit or
Addendum) by the Indemnifying Party of its representatives, except to the extent that such claims,
damages, losses, liabilities, judgements, settlements, costs and expenses are caused by negligence or

Page 5 of 9NCOA Consulting Services Agreement
(v. August 2022)



intentional misconduct of the Indemnified Party. The indemnified Party shall notify the Indemnifying
Party ofany such claim and reasonably corporate with the Indemnifying Party in defense of such claims
at the Indemnifying Party’s expense.

General.

10.0! Independent Contractors. NCOA and Contractor are independent parties and this Agreement shall
not be construed to create an employment, agency, partnership or joint venture relationship between the
parties. The status of Contractor and Contractor’s personnel will be that of independent contractors
and not that of an employee or agent of NCOA. Accordingly, Contractor recognizes and agrees that
neitlier Contractor nor Contractor’s personnel are eligible to participate in any employee welfare or other
benefit plans, however characterized, maintained by NCOA and shall not be entitled to unemployment
compensation at the termination or expiration of this Agreement or any SOW. Contractors agrees to
assume all responsibility and liability for any and all federal and state employers' liability, workers’
compensation, social security and unemployment insurance requirements with respect to Contractor and
Contractor's personnel. Contractor agrees to pay and report (or requii'e to be paid and icported) all
federal, state and local income, employment and payroll withholding taxes and other governmental taxes
or charges for personnel rendering Services, including, without limitation, federal and slate income tax
withholding, FICA, FUTA, SDL and state payroll taxes, as may be applicable.

110.03 Assignment. Contractor understands that Contractor has been selected by NCOA to perform the
Services on the basis of Contractor’s unique qualifications, experience and skills. Accordingly,
Contractor agrees that Contractor cannot assign any this Agreement or portion of Contractor’s
performance under this Agreement without the prior written consent of NCOA.

10.04 Costs and Expenses. Except as set forth in this Agreement, each party shall pay all its own costs
and expenses in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

10.05 Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not
constitute a waiver of the provisions or of the right of the party to enforce each and every provision
contained in this Agreement.

10.06 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement for any reason shall be declared void, illegal,
invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, such provision shall be severable from all other provisions
herein and shall not affect or impair the validity or enforceability of any other provisions of this
Agreement.

10.07 Survival. The following provisions shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement for
any reason: Section 6 (Confidentiality) and 9 (Indemnification).

10.08 Force maieure. Neither party shall be liable for any delay or failure to perform its obligations
under this Agreement if prevented from doing so by a cause or causes beyond its reasonable control.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, such causes include acts of God, the public enemy, fires,
floods, storms, earthquakes, riots, terrorism, strikes, blackouts, wars or war operations, restraints of
government, utility or communications failures, computer malfunctions and equipment failure, computer
hackers, telecommunications slow-downs or failure, or other causes which could not with reasonable

diligence be controlled or prevented by the party.

10.09 Governing Law: Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the federal laws of the United States and the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to its conflicts
of laws rules. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive Jurisdiction and venue of the state
and federal courts located in the Commonwealth of Virginia for any action arising under this Agreement.

NCOA Consulting Services Agreement
(v. August 2022)

Page 6 of 9



10.10 Injunctive Relief. The parties acknowledge that violations of Sections 1.05(vi) and 6 of this

Agreement may result in irreparable harm to the non-violating party for which remedies other than
injunctive relief may be inadequate, and that the non-violating party shall be entitled to receive from a
court of competent jurisdiction injunctive or other equitable relief to restrain such unauthorized acts in

addition to other appropriate remedies. In the event of any claimed breach of any provisions of this
Agreement, and in the event a party requests any injunctive relief or other relief in equity to stop or enjoin
any act or acts by the other party, the parties agree that should such relief be granted by any court, that Ihe
requesting party shall not be required to post any bond or other surety as a pre-condition to such relief
being granted and enacted.

10.11 Notices. All notices and demands under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficient
if sent by fax, registered mail or courier service in I-higlish, in each instance with confirmation of receipt,
to the other party at its address given below, or at another address designated by such party in writing at a

later time. A notice shall be deemed given on the date it was received.

Contractor:

Jasper County Senior Center
26 Mack Tillman Drive

Monticello, GA 31064

NCOA:

Chief Customer Officer

National Council on Aging
251 18th Street South, Suite 500

Arlington, VA 22202

10.12 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the terms
and conditions between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior

negotiations, agreements and representations regarding the subject matter hereof. There are no other
agreements or representations not set forth herein. The Agreement shall not be modified except by a
written instrument, signed by an authorized representative of both parties.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which

shall be considered an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document,
binding on ail parties notwithstanding that each of the parties may have signed different counterparts.
The exchange of a fully executed Agreement, in counterparts or otherwise, by facsimile or electronic
scanning shall be sufficient to bind the parties to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

NCOA Consulting Services Agreement
(v. August 2022)

Page 7 of 9



KXHIBIT A

Statement of Work No. 1

'I'his Slaleinent of Work No. 1 ("Statement of Work”) is entered into by and between NCOA and Contractor under

a certain Agreement for Contracted Services dated as of July 11, 2023 (the “Agreement”), and is incorporated by
i-cference into and made a part of the Agreement: Any capitalized terms not defined in this Statement of Work
shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.

Statementof Work Effective Date; July 11, 2023

2. Scope of Services:

The purpose of this contract is for Contractor to provide services related to COVID-19 and flu vaccine
outreach and vaccinations to older adults and people with disabilities in its catchment area. Specifically,
Contractor will:

Provide a minimum of 100 vaccinations to older adults and./or people with disabilities. Vaccinations
must be either COVID-19 or flu, or a combination of both. (Contractor may offer additional
vaccinations, but only COV1D-I9 and flu vaccines will be counted toward the goals of this

agreement.)

Attend required onboarding and regular technical assistance meetings held by NCOA staff.

Use NCOA-branded templates for marketing and outreach materials.

Send vaccination data to NCOA. NCOA will supply a template for the vaccinalion data. Data is
expected to include type of vaccination administered and date of vaccination.

Provide composite demographic data of members/participants served in catchment area.

OPTIONAL: Report one vaccine success story to NCOA.

Target Completion Date: All Services will be completed by April 30, 2024. The following deliverables
shall be completed on or before the target completion date of this agreement:

3.

● 100 vaccinations administered to older adults and/or people with disabilities.

● Data on vaccinations administered sent to NCOA upon completion of required 100 vaccinations and
at the end of the project period.

● Attendance at mandatory onboarding and technical assistance meetings.

4. Fees and Payment Terms:

Pees/ Payment Terms:a.

NCOA has retained Contractor to perform the Services for a total amount of $10,000. The Contractor will
not be paid until after receipt of this Agreement, signed by both parties, and a completed W-9 form. Once
all documentation is complete. Contractor will be paid in full.

Reporting Requirements:5.

Contractor will provide vaccination data to NCOA per the scope of work and deliverables above.

NCOA Consulting Services Agreement
(v. August 2022)

Page 8 of 9



Other Assumptions/ Project I'crms;6.

Contractor will sign an attestation that contlrnis both its not-for-pront status and that it has not received

other funding fi'om NCOA oi‘ US Aging under their respective vaccine initiatives funded by ACl..

Please Initial:

Contractor:

NCOA:

Page 9 of 9NCOA Considliug Services Agreement

<v. August 2022)



Business Item 4: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:   October 2, 2023 

 

 

Subject: Consideration for Extending the Moratorium on Short Term Rentals 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Consideration needs to be given to extend the moratorium on Short-Term Rentals. 

 

Staff and County Attorney are developing county ordinances to regulate Short-Term Rentals. 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

At the July 10, 2023 Meeting, the BOC imposed a moratorium to not allow any new Short-Term Vacation 

Rentals to operate within Jasper County. The moratorium is in effect thru November 10, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  



RESOLUTION # 100223-2 
 

A   RESOLUTION   OF   THE   JASPER   COUNTY   BOARD   OF   COMMISSIONERS 
TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM ON SHORT TERM VACATION RENTALS FOR A 
PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED ___________ DAYS.  

 
 
WHEREAS, at the July 10, 2023 Meeting, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

imposed a moratorium to not allow any new Short-Term Vacation Rentals to operate within Jasper 
County. The moratorium is in effect thru November 10, 2023. 

 
WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners desire to extend the moratorium 

for a period not to exceed ________ days. 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Jasper 

County, Georgia as follows: 
 

1. The Jasper County Board of Commissioners does hereby extend the moratorium on Short 
Term Vacation Rentals for a period not to exceed   ______________ days. 

 
2. This Resolution shall be effective upon a majority vote by the Board of Commissioners. 

 
 
So resolved this 2ND day of October 2023, the public's health, safety and welfare demanding it. 
 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Sharon Robinson, County Clerk 



Business Item 5: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:   October 2, 2023 

 

 

Subject: Consideration of Extending the Moratorium on the Acceptance of Rezoning Requests 

   

 

Summary:  

 

Consideration needs to be given to extend the moratorium on accepting requests for rezoning commercial and 

residential rezoning applications. 

 

This consideration is needed due to the resignation of the Planning & Zoning Director. 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

At the May 1, 2023 Meeting, the BOC adopted a resolution imposing a moratorium on accepting accepting 

commercial and residential rezoning applications. The moratorium terminates on the earlier date of November 

1, 2023 or adoption of the Comp Plan update. 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  



RESOLUTION # 100223-1 
 

A   RESOLUTION   OF   THE   JASPER   COUNTY   BOARD   OF   COMMISSIONERS 
TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM ON ACCEPTING COMMERCIAL AND 
RESIDENTIAL RE-ZONING APPLICATIONS FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED 
___________ DAYS. 

 
WHEREAS, at the May 1, 2023 Meeting, the BOC adopted a resolution imposing a 

moratorium on accepting commercial and residential rezoning applications. The moratorium 
terminates on the earlier date of November 1, 2023 or adoption of the Comp Plan update. 

 
WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners desires to extend the moratorium,  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Jasper 

County, Georgia as follows: 
 
1. The Jasper County Board of Commissioners does hereby extend the moratorium on accepting 
Commercial and Rezoning applications for a period not to exceed __________ days.  
 
 
2. This Resolution shall be effective upon a majority vote by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
So resolved this 2ND day of October 2023, the public's health, safety and welfare demanding it. 
 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 
 

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Sharon Robinson, County Clerk 



Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   October 2, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Consideration of Adopting a Moratorium on the Acceptance of Subdivision Preliminary  
  Plats 
   
 
Summary:  
 
Consideration needs to be given to impose a moratorium on accepting subdivision preliminary plats. 
 
This consideration is needed due to the resignation of the Planning & Zoning Director. 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Board Discretion 



RESOLUTION # 100223-3 
 

A   RESOLUTION   OF   THE   JASPER   COUNTY   BOARD   OF   COMMISSIONERS 
TO IMPOSE A MORATORIUM ON THE ACCEPTANCE OF SUBDIVISION 
PRELIMINARY PLATS FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED ___________ DAYS.  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners desires to impose a moratorium on 
accepting Subdivision Preliminary plats,   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Jasper 

County, Georgia as follows: 
 

1. The Jasper County Board of Commissioners does hereby impose a moratorium on accepting 
Subdivision Preliminary Plats for a period not to exceed __________ days.  

 
2. This Resolution shall be effective upon a majority vote by the Board of Commissioners. 

 
 
So resolved this 2ND day of October 2023, the public's health, safety and welfare demanding it. 
 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Sharon Robinson, County Clerk 



Business Item 7: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Accounting & Finance 

 

Date:   October 2, 2023 

 

 

Subject: FY 2023 Final Year End Budget Amendments 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Finance has prepared Final FY 2023 General Fund Budget Amendments for Board review: 

 

EMA: $1,074,713.50 

 

Public Works: $64,021.65 

 

Recreation: $27,268.69 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

The net amount to come out of General Fund Balance is $1,166,003.84 of which $1,074,713.50 relates 

to EMA. 

 

Jasper County EMA budget overage is result of January 12, 2023 tornado and FEMA projects are still 

ongoing.   

 

Jasper County EMA has received first refund check from FEMA/GEMA on September 27, 2023 in the 

amount of $259,191.47.  Addiitonal FEMA/GEMA reimbursement checks to come in FY 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

 

Approve FY2023 Final Year End Budget Amendments as presented. 



  
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2023 for Jasper County Government earlier in 
the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which 
requires adjustment from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the EMA 
Department budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- EMA DEPARTMENT     Debit  Credit 
100-300-03920-00052-521000 Contracted Services     $1,014,496.35 
100-300-03920-00052-521200 Professional Services     $          975.00 
100-300-03920-00052-522210 Vehicle Repair & Maintenance    $          443.67 
100-300-03920-00052-523210 Postage       $          715.20 
100-300-03920-00052-523500 Travel Reimbursement     $       2,315.11 
100-300-03920-00052-523700 Education & Training     $       1,704.39 
100-300-03920-00053-531230 Electricity      $          666.70 
100-300-03920-00053-531240 Natural – Propane Gas     $       1,277.25 
100-300-03920-00053-531300 Food       $       1,034.10 
100-300-03920-00053-531720 Computer Supplies     $          106.99 
100-300-03920-00053-531740 Operating Supplies     $       3,469.34 
100-300-03920-00053-533320 Gravel       $     47,509.40 
  
 
GL ACCOUNT – GENERAL FUND BALANCE    Debit  Credit 
                          $1,074,713.50 
   
 
 
                         30th                            June 
Adopted this _______ of       2023. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
                                              
BOC Chairman      Chief Accounting Officer 
 
 
 
 



  
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2023 for Jasper County Government earlier in 
the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which 
requires adjustment from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the commission approves allocation of the 
Public Works Department budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- PUBLIC WORKS      Debit  Credit 
100-400-04200-00052-522210 Vehicle & Equipment Repair     $64,021.65 
  
 
GL ACCOUNT – GENERAL FUND BALANCE    Debit  Credit 
                                 $64,021.65 
   
 
 
                         30th                            June 
Adopted this _______ of       2023. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
                                              
BOC Chairman      Chief Accounting Officer 
 
 
 
 



  
 
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023 

 
 
 
 
Commission approved a budget for fiscal year 2023 for Jasper County Government earlier in 
the year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the budget is a dynamic rather than static revenue and spending plan which 
requires adjustment from time to time as circumstances change; and 
 
WHEREAS, these adjustments maintain a balanced budget for all funds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Commission approves allocation of the 
Recreation budget by the following:  
 
GL ACCOUNT- RECREATION      Debit  Credit 
100-600-06100- 00053-531320 Football Supplies                                  $10,052.25 
100-600-06100-00053-531360 Baseball Supplies     $14,435.43 
100-600-06100-00053-531370 Softball Supplies      $  2,781.01 
 
 
GL ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND BALANCE    Debit  Credit 
         $27,268.69                            
 
  30th             June  
Adopted this _______ of       2023. 
  Day   Month 
 
 
 
                               _____________                                  
BOC Chairman      Chief Accounting Officer 
 
 
 
 



Business Item 8:  
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Impact Fees 
 
Date:   October 2, 2023 
 
 
Subject: FY 2023 Capital Improvements Element Annual Update 
   
 
 
Summary:  
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Board Discretion 





Business Item 9: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   October 2, 2023 

 

 

Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Scheduled Work Session 

Friday, October 20, 2023 9:00 A.M. 2024 LMIG Projects 

 

Background:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

 


